FILED WAS DE LA SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

JUN 29 1992

CASE NO. ..... 80 05-8

Chief Deputy Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

BRIAN LEWIS,

Respondent.

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

#### BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

ANGELICA D. ZAYAS
Florida Bar No. 0822256
Assistant Attorney General
Department of Legal Affairs
P.O. BOX 013241
Miami, Florida 33101
(305) 377-5441

##

#### INTRODUCTION

Petitioner was the Appellee in the Third District Court of appeal and the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, in and for Dade County, Florida. Respondent was the Appellant in the District court and the defendant in the trial court.

In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court. The symbol "App." will be used to designate the appendix to this brief.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent, Brian Lewis, was arrested and charged with trafficking in cocaine and conspiring to traffic in cocaine as a result of his encounter with a confidential informant. (App. 1). Respondent moved to dismiss the charges against him arguing 1) due process rights; and, 2) objective violation of his entrapment. (App. 1, p.3). The trial court rejected both arguments and denied Respondent's motion to dismiss. (App.1 p.3). As a result, Respondent entered a plea of no contest, reserving his right to appeal. (App. 1, p.3).

On appeal, Respondent argued that he had been "randomly picked out by a police informant who was paid a contingent fee that was determined, in part, by the amount of property seized" and that he had been "objectively entrapped because the police activity in question did not have as its end, the interruption of a specific ongoing criminal activity." (App. 1).

The state responded to these claims by arguing that Respondent's due process rights were not violated because payment to the informant was not contingent on the informant testifying at trial. See State v. Hunter, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991). The state also argued that the issue of objective entrapment was to be decided by the jury. See §777.201, Florida Statutes (1987).

The Third District Court of Appeal rejected Respondent's due process argument, but found the Respondent had been objectively entrapped as a matter of law. (App. 1, p.4-5.).

In a petition for rehearing and rehearing <u>en banc</u>, the state argued that the Third District had improperly relied on the application of the objective entrapment test in <u>State v. Hunter</u> inasmuch as §777.201 was not in effect when Hunter was charged, nor when Hunter's crimes were committed. (App. 2). Rehearing and rehearing <u>en banc</u> were denied on June 9, 1992 (App. 3).

Notice invoking the jurisdiction of this Honorable Court was filed on June 16, 1992.

## SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The instant opinion is in express and direct conflict with Herrera v. State, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992), State v. Thinh Thien Pham, 17 FLW D 607 (Fla. 1st DCA March 2, 1992) and other district court opinions. Discretionary review should be exercised to resolve this conflict and ensure uniformity among the districts.

#### POINT ON APPEAL

WHETHER THE OPINION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE INSTANT CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH HERRERA V. STATE, 17 FLW S 84 (FLA., FEBRUARY 7, 1992, STATE V. THINH THIEN PHAM, 17 FLW D607 (FLA. 1ST DCA MARCH 2, 1992) AND OTHER DISTRICT COURT OPINIONS?

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE OPINION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE INSTANT CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH HERRERA V. STATE, 17 FLW S 84 (FLA. FEBRUARY 7, 1992, STATE V. THINH THIEN PHAM, 17 FLW D607 (FLA. 1ST DCA MARCH 2, 1992) AND OTHER DISTRICT COURT OPINIONS.

Section 777.201 of the Florida Statutes (1989) expressly states that the "issue of entrapment shall be tried by the trier of fact." In Herrera v. State, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992), this Honorable Court was asked to consider whether §777.201 impermissibly and unconstitutionally shifted the burden of proof to the defense. This question was answered in the negative since the state is not relieved of the burden of proving each element of the crime charged where the defense claims entrapment and is required to persuade the jury that he or she was entrapped. 17 FLW at 585. By reaching this decision, this Honorable Court necessarily and implicitly ruled that the statute was in all other respects constitutionally sound and in full force and effect. However, because the objective entrapment defense could not be applied to the facts of Herrera, the issue of whether the objective entrapment defense remained viable in light of 777.201 was not reached. 17 FLW at 585. (Justice Kogan concurring).

This decision was reached by the First District Court of appeal in State v. Thinh Thien Pham, 17 FLW D 607 (Fla. 1st DCA

March 2, 1992; Simmons v. State, 16 FLW D 3092 (Fla. 1st DCA Dec. 13, 1991); and State v. Munoz, 586 So.2d 515 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991). In the foregoing cases, the First District Court of appeal recognized the uncertainty among the districts and ruled that § 777.201, Florida Statutes (1987) "effectively abolished the objective entrapment test articulated in Cruz v. State, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), cert. denied, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985)." 17 FLW at D 607.

The Third District Court of Appeal in the instant case reversed Respondent conviction because "neither part of the Cruz test was satisfied." (App 1, p. 5). In ruling that neither part of the Cruz test was satisfied in the instant case, the Third District effectively ruled that the Cruz test of objective entrapment is viable notwithstanding § 777.201, Florida Statutes (1987), and implicitly ruled that §777.201 is void and of no effect. These rulings expressly and directly conflict with the decisions in Herrera v. State, Thinh Thien Pham, and Simmons v. State. Therefore, discretionary review jurisdiction should be exercised by this Honorable Court to settle the conflict among the districts and ensure statewide uniformity.

#### CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing Petitioner respectfully requests that this court grant discretionary review in the instant cause.