0+5
FILED
8ID J. WHITE
JUL 20 1992
CLERK, SOPREME COURT
ByChief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

- •

CASE NO.: 80,058

BRIAN LEWIS,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

KENNETH J. RONAN, ESQUIRE FLORIDA BAR NO. 339938 Lavalle, Brown & Ronan, P.A. Attorneys for Respondent 2600 N. Military Trail, 4th Floor Boca Raton, Florida 33431 (407) 997-0095

.

INTRODUCTION

Respondent was the Appellant in the Third District Court of Appeal and the Defendant in the trial court. Petitioner was the Appellee in the Third District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, in and for Dade County, Florida.

In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court. The symbol "App." will be used to designate the appendix to this brief.

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts Petitioner's statement of case and facts except to note that The Third District found "that neither part of the <u>Cruz</u> test was satisfied." (App. 1, p.5).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The instant opinion conforms with this Court's position on objective entrapment as oultined in <u>Cruz v. State</u>, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), 17 FLW D 607, <u>State v. Hunter</u>, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Herrera v. State</u>, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992) (Kogan, J., concurring).

POINT ON APPEAL

•

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION WHEN THE INSTANT OPINION CONFORMS WITH THIS COURT'S POSITION ON OBJECTIVE ENTRAPMENT AS OUTLINED IN Cruz v. State, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), 17 FLW D 607, <u>State v. Hunter</u>, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Herrera v. State</u>, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992), (Kogan, J., concurring)?

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT ACCEPT JURISDICTION WHEN THE INSTANT OPINION CONFORMS WITH THIS COURT'S POSITION ON OBJECTIVE ENTRAPMENT AS OUTLINED IN Cruz v. State, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), cert. denied, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), 17 FLW D 607, State v. Hunter, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Herrera v. State</u>, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992), (Kogan, J., concurring).

This Court has stated its position on objective entrapment in <u>Cruz v. State</u>, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), 17 FLW D 607, <u>State v.</u> <u>Hunter</u>, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Herrera v. State</u>, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992) (Kogan, J., concurring). It is true that the First District Court of Appeal in <u>State v. Thinh Thien</u> <u>Pham</u>, 17 FLW D 607 (Fla. 1st DCA March 2, 1992) has certified a question previously certified in <u>Simmons v. State</u>, 16 FLW D 3092 (Fla. 1st DCA Dec. 13, 1991) regarding the existence of objective entrapment in light of §777.201, Florida Statutes (1987), but that has been done because the court felt "<u>constrained</u> (emphasis added) to follow this court's (The First District's) prior decisions". <u>State v. Thinh Thien Pham</u>, 17 FLW at D 607.

In light of this Court's clearly stated position on objective entrapment in <u>Cruz v. State</u>, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), <u>cert.</u> <u>denied</u>, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), 1 7 FLW D 607, <u>State v. Hunter</u>, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Herrera</u> <u>v. State</u>, 17 FLW S 84 (Fla. February 7, 1992) (Kogan, J., concurring), discretionary jurisdiction should not be accepted.

CONCLUSION

.

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing, Respondent respectfully requests that this Court deny discretionary review in the instant cause.